
Bartlett Regional Hospital — A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

Agenda 
Governance Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, June 16, 2020; 1:00 p.m.  
Bartlett Regional Hospital – Boardroom/Zoom/Teleconference 

Public may follow the meeting via the following link https://bartletthospital.zoom.us/j/93252888277 or 
call 

1 669 900 6833 and enter webinar ID 932 5288 8277 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mission Statement 

Bartlett Regional Hospital provides its community with quality, patient-centered care in a sustainable manner. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES – May 12, 2020 Governance Committee (Page 2) 

III. BYLAWS REVIEW SUGGESTIONS –

 DRAFT REVIEW SUGGESTIONS FROM MEGAN COSTELLO (Page 3) 

IV. ESTABLISHING NEEDED BOARD MEMBER SKILLS TO SHARE WITH ASSEMBLY

V. INFORMATION

 BOARD SKILLS MATRIX (Page 6) 

VI. COMMENTS

VII. ADJOURN



 

 

Governance Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, May 12, 2020; 1:30 p.m. 

Bartlett Regional Hospital - Boardroom 
 

Called to order at 1:32 p.m. by Brenda Knapp, Committee Chair  

Attendance:  

Committee Members: Brenda Knapp, Rosemary Hagevig and Kenny Solomon-Gross 

Board Members present: Marshal Kendziorek 

BRH Staff: Chuck Bill, CEO, Megan Costello, CLO, Rose Lawhorne, CNO, Bradley Grigg, CBHO, 
Nathan Overson, Compliance Director, and Suzette Nelson Executive Assistant  

Ms. Hagevig made a MOTION to approve the minutes from February 11, 2020.                            
Mr. Solomon - Gross seconded and they were approved with no objections.  

Ms. Knapp recapped the suggested Bylaws changes and had the committee outline their proposed 
modifications. 

Ms. Costello noted that the Compliance reports are different than the Quality reports. If we combine the 
meetings, it would likely be one longer meeting with two separate reports.  

There were no findings for a legal requirement to have two separate Board Committees, but there are 
different requirements for the Compliance Program and the Quality Program. The different functions are 
reflected in the current bylaws which explain the roles of each committee. 

In regards to Public Notice, it is her understanding that CBJ is looking at changing this in the CBJ charter 
and code for the notification requirements, as the Juneau Empire has been having some issues, and may 
be going under. Her recommendation is that we change this bylaw to reflect that notice and will be 
completed for all meetings and committee meetings in accordance with the CBJ Code requirements, and 
additionally will be posted on the BRH website. (That way it will change depending on what the CBJ 
code requires.) 

Ms. Knapp suggested a possible Bylaws change reducing the number of required board meetings from 
one per month, or twelve per year, to no less than ten per year. This change would also require a change 
in Title 40. This would give the Board latitude in setting meeting dates when achieving a quorum might 
be difficult but would not preclude having a meeting every month as is done now. Since most attendees 
were participating via Zoom video conferencing, the committee decided to table discussion of the 
possible change in number of required meetings until later, preferably when everyone is able to be around 
the table. 

Ms. Hagevig made a MOTION to table the recommended meetings per year that the Board 
shall meet.   Mr. Solomon - Gross seconded and motion approved with no objection.  

Next Meeting: June 16, 1:00 pm 
Adjourned at 2:43 p.m.  



  

 
            Alaska’s Capital 
City & Borough of Juneau 

155 South Seward Street, One Sealaska Plaza Suite 202, Juneau AK 99801  /  Phone: 907-586-5242  /  Fax:  586-1147  

LAW DEPARTMENT 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM  
 

DATE:   June 1, 2020 

TO:   BRH Board Governance Committee 

FROM:   Megan J. Costello, Assistant Municipal Attorney 

SUBJECT: Legal’s review and suggestions on requested changes from Governance 
Committee on 5/12/2020. 

 
      
This memo contains language on the proposed changes requested by the BRH Board Governance 
Committee on 5/12/2020, to be discussed at the next Governance Committee meeting.  Any 
changes would need to be adopted by the full BRH Board, and approved by CBJ Assembly. 
 
 
1. Bylaw 154 (1) Executive Committee. 
 

The recommendation by the Executive Committee was to remove the current language that allows the 
Past President to serve as the ex-officio voting member for only one year, and to also remove the “when 
appropriate” language.  
 

Proposed change: 
 

Bylaw 154 (1) Executive Committee:  
 

“The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, and, 
when appropriate, the Immediate Past President. The President shall be Chair of the Executive 
Committee and in their absence the Vice President shall be Chair.  The Immediate Past President 
shall serve as an ex-officio voting member on the Executive Committee only for a term of one year 
following his or her last term as President. The Executive Committee shall be empowered to 
transact all regular business of the hospital during the interim between meetings of the Board, 
provided that any action it may take shall not conflict with the policies of the Board.  Any action 
taken by the Executive Committee shall be reported at the next regular meeting of the Board and 
may be rescinded by Board action at the meeting.” 

 
2. Bylaw 154 (2) Finance Committee. 
 

There was a request by the Governance Committee for Legal and Finance to look at this language and 
remove the time limit for the budget to allow for some leeway, with the understanding that Finance will 
have to prepare the budget with enough time to meet the City budget procedure.  
 



Legal’s review and suggestions on requested changes      June 1, 2020 
from 5/12/20 Governance Committee    Page 2 of 3  

Proposed change: 
 
 Bylaw 154 (2) Finance Committee: 
  

“Not later than April 1, The Finance Committee will complete its review in a timely 
fashion, and forward the budget to the Board for approval and submission to the City and Borough 
Manager, as provided in CBJ 40.25.2020.” 

 
3. Bylaw 0165 Notice (2). 
 

The CBJ is undergoing a planned revision to their Notice requirements in the CBJ Charter to allow for 
internet advertising or social media platforms should a local newspaper become unavailable. Legal 
recommends changing this section to allow for the planned change to the CBJ code by specifying that 
Notice will occur in accordance with CBJ code, with the addition of advertising on the BRH website.  
 

Suggested language:  
 
 Bylaw 0165 Notice (2): 
 

Reasonable public notice shall be given for all meetings. Notice of all Board meetings and 
committee meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the CBJ Code. delivered to 
newspapers of general circulation in the municipality and to the commercial radio and television 
stations operating in the municipality at least 24 hours prior to such meetings.  Notice shall also 
be made on the BRH website. In calling a special meeting this notice shall state the business for 
the transaction of which the special meeting has been called and no business other than that stated 
in the notice shall be transacted at such special meeting. 

 
4. Bylaw 152 Officers.  
 

The Governance Committee suggested that Legal look at these sections on the voting, as there were 
some questions on this last year. In reviewing these sections, there appears to be two possible areas where 
changes may be helpful on past questions:  
 

• Bylaw 152 Officers (4); and 
• Bylaw 152 Officers (2). 

 
Bylaw 152 Officers (4): 
 

This section references a Nominating Committee. The details of the Nominating Committee are not 
located anywhere in the Board Bylaws or Policy Manual, and the only reference is in this section.  
 

Under the Open Meetings Act, if there is a Board Committee, it has to hold its meetings publically, and 
cannot go into executive session unless the topic fits within the Open Meetings Act limited exemptions. In 
discussing with the CBJ Attorney last fall when this came up, the OMA does not allow for executive session 



Legal’s review and suggestions on requested changes      June 1, 2020 
from 5/12/20 Governance Committee    Page 3 of 3  

to discuss the nominations or appointments or performance of the Hospital Board Members.  If there is not 
a Committee designated by the Board, there is more freedom for individual Board members to discuss with 
each other. The OMA applies to a gathering of more than three members or a majority of the members, 
whichever is less, of a governmental body. (AS 44.62.310(a)(2)(A)). If there is not a Committee, then an 
informal discussion by up to 3 Board members to discuss nominations does not implicate the meeting 
requirements of the OMA. It is recommended that the reference to a Nominating Committee be removed. 
The President would then have the freedom to ask certain members (if desired) to evaluate possible 
nominations. If it is not designated as a Committee, up to 3 Board members could meet informally. Votes 
for the officer positions would continue to be annually elected as referred to in the Board Bylaws and the 
Board manual.  
 

Possible recommendation: Remove the reference to a nominating committee:  
 

Bylaw 152 Officers (4): 
 

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, and shall be an ex-officio voting 
member of all committees except the nominating committee. The President shall be the Chairperson 
of the Executive Committee. 

 
Bylaw 152 Officers (2): 
  

Similar to this issue, there was a question last fall on when Board Officers take possession, which is 
not outlined in the Board manual or the Board Bylaws. The Board Officers shall be elected in December if 
the CBJ Assembly annual appointments occur prior to December’s Board meeting, or elections will be held 
later at the meeting directly following appointments if the appointments occur after the December meeting. 
(Board Policy Manual). Under the Robert’s Rules of Order, the officers would take possession immediately 
after the election but it may be beneficial to make this clear in the Bylaws.  
 
Possible recommendation:  
 

Bylaw 152 Officers (2): 
 

Officers shall be elected annually according to the schedule in the Board Manual, and each 
shall take office immediately after election. Officers shall hold office for one year term and until 
successors shall have been elected. Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.  






